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Cyee

E ..,flr-:f,hé\'ié"éudit'ed ‘the accompanying f‘i'ria’nci'a‘li"s'taté"men'_t,s-:bf the governmental a,C'ti\i'itiés;,_blj_s_iﬁes,é,fty;ie G

* activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information "'o.f’-'ghe‘T;ownfdf‘;Wé”éter'hpqr,t,] .".' R
Ma /asC d_f'c_,r}th-e‘yea-r'_endégmn_e‘-_fso-,_znzz;__énd.thé;_r';e'la_ted' notes to the financial statemenits;’ .
- which collectively comprise the Town of Westernport; Maryland’s basit financial statements as listed.in . "
' thetableofcontents L e e e e T ST

" In my opinion, t“hei‘-fi,‘haﬂ'c_‘i'al-§ta_temen_ts referred to above present fairly; in all material respects, the
, ;_-re"Sbec_tﬂive'fih_a‘né.iail ppsiti@n*'qf',,t_fhé._‘go\;ernméhtél‘,act'i\k‘itiés,',?bu'sihéss—type”. activities, each major furd, .
- "and the aggregate remaining fund information of the T;‘;Wﬁ.'o_fJwesté,rn‘port;;f_Marylan.d,.as of June 30, =
¢ . 2022,/and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof for the RRVRRET
- year end_'fhe'n‘eﬁdédlIirii}:;_l_c-’co'rdan_ce'w'ith-_éécbulnt‘ing principles generally accepted in the United States of -~~~ |
ocAmerica. o T R e e T e T T R e o

e B_és'is_‘fb} opi,nipf;sf"-"‘ R

o cqhddqted‘my,,a.udi: 'inﬂ"acﬁ_ordan'.cé -w;th_"';a_uditir_ig-sfahdards _g’enera,l]y"a'c_;c'ep'te;q-._i-.'q the unitedstates-of‘ RN
. America.and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, . -
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. My responsibilities under those standards are ~ -

fu"rt:h'e_'r‘-dés_c_r'ibéd_i_ri-t-hé.'jAudit_prfs Responsibilities for:the Audit b’f‘the._’Finarjtia_llsjtaitembh,t'sse_étidn'0f7m_y3' R

7 report. 1 am required'to be'independent of the Town of Westernport, Maryland and-to feet my other - i
. ‘ethical responsibilities, in accordance. with the- relevant. ethical reqlirements relating -t ‘my audit: 1 s

- believe that the audit eviderice | have. obtairied:is suffi_c_-iéht-and'apprdp_riétef‘:tb. provide a basis for my. .-

. r

= :Management’ is' responsible’ for the. preparation and  fair presentation of the financial statemients in.
: ,__a'écprdanCe_IZWith__‘acéounting".p’rinciples ‘generally accepted in the United States of America, and forthe <. .
“design, implementation, 'a_fndr;maintehance' of internal control relevant to the preparation.-and fair -
_ presenfaftib'n-of.f_inan_ci'ai st:atémer_its'thafc-are:free frorh 'ma'téria'l misstatement, whether due to fratid'pr..
error.- . . o L T Lo S T T T

R AmencanlnstrtuteofCPAs— Maryland Association of CPAs -~ AR




- In preparing the financial statements, managemerit is required to evaluate whether there are condlitions .~~~ .

_".i,__or_eventé,_-;o_riSide’redVir'{ the aggregate, .th:a't_‘__ar‘ise,'_su_lg'st_anﬁall‘fd_étibt". ab,qﬁt':'r"ther-];._own: of :Wés:tempdrt,-_”'
U Maryland’s ability to continue. as:a going. concern for. twelve months beyond-'thevﬁnanciaf statement - 0.
¥ date, including any currently known Eh‘folr‘mat_ior};tha't may 'raise.s_ubs_tan'tié_l;gouht's‘hort__lv.;the‘rga'ftért.‘ R

L I,Auditdr-’_s7Rés’_poh$ibiliﬁésﬁi’ih-e'Adijt.iii@fthézFiﬁnan_c‘i,él“St'atén_\én_ts--l L

My.objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about’ whether t_hef-'ifi'hal_hjcia.l-':-__sta"t_'ém‘en_ts‘_as awhole”

- - are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or-érror, and to issue an auditor's report
~~that includes my opinions. " Reasonable assurance ‘is'a’ high level of assurance_but is not absolute’™ c
© " ‘assurance and. therefore is not a’ guarantee ‘that an- audit conductéd: ;i‘ri,_écjco_rd,énce"With'.flgg‘ri__ér'al_ly'
17 decepted ‘auditing standards and - Government . Aliditing -Standards. will always ‘detect ‘a . material .~
© - misstatement when it éxists, “The risk of not detecting'a material misstatement resulting from fraud is .
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, .
- -misrepresentations, or the averride of Eriterri’al-‘con'tr‘o‘l_.‘_'Mis's'tatér'helnjtg are'corisidered miaterial if there . BT
' Is a substantial likelihood " that, ‘individually or i the aggregate, they Would influence- the judgement
~'made by a reasonable user based.on the financial statemenits. - T TR

- In_ performing an audit in. accordance iWifh,_gefrje'réIly;f.qcc'e-pt'éd'..a,udi'tlin'g-_ standards’and Government  + -
“Auditing Standards, 1: L o e T T T T

s ¢_'_‘1-_E_xerc_:isejpr’cifq-s';sic')fha,l,judg‘rﬁeﬁtﬁ_a'nd rﬁai'n't'ai'n:pr_ofe,s.é.i_o.n'él':I_r:.k_eg'p'_ti';':iémth‘rbUghddi the'audip. -~ T

-.® . Identify and assess the risks-‘t)_f_'mé_terialj‘rhis_sta_a’_ti_erhe'ntsfo_f t'h:e‘finé__ricialjs‘tété_rh_én'_t_s,3-Whefhe'r.,dﬁe" "
*. -to/fraud orierror and design and perform: audit- procedures responsive’ to those risks.  Stch

in the financial statements, -

- procedures include :éx;i‘m;in\ing";_zon'é test basis, 'évid_’e’"nc,é--'regajrdjng._:_fhgﬁ amounts and disclosures . .. "

"= Obtain an understanding fdf’_iilntér'nél; co’)htfql_‘-_re;lé\(?a'h'f_‘td the atidit in: order o design audit S s
- proceduresthat are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing.an .~ "

“opinion- on the ‘effectiveness of the.

. +Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. " -

e Evalyate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and ‘th'_é_--reaédné_b_lénesé-,of':.'éig:n'ifi_(:ant"__'?"'- A

“accounting estimates made-by management, as well-as evaluate the overall.presentation of the
financial statements, oL e r T e T R AT S O S

e “Concliide whether,” in- my judgement, there are conditions ‘or events, _cqn:sider,éd‘_i'n--t'he'j:"':. s
g isé: substantial- doubt about the Town 'o'_f'W_estern_p_q,rt,-'_Mafylan_d’s'ab'ilit-_y_ to. -

*aggregate, that.ra
continue as a-going concern for areasonable period of time. .~

RS _'émjr'e':_qui}e-d'.to‘jcomr’r;n;_n‘ic_at,e with those ‘charged with 'gﬁve'fhan‘cé:_reg.a,r‘d.i'ngr,iar:rlc'iﬁg other matter’s,’ S
. the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain. internal control-related
~. “mattersthat i identified during the audit. - o e

_;-'Ré(_:jilliréd_Supbléh‘\éhtafy'lgjf_oi'?ija"tli‘oh‘._,‘--' .
= Accoluntir}___g' b;i'hcib'le'sﬂ'ge.néi;aIAI‘y'a'r_;-'cgptejd in the United .Sta-te.'s:'d'f.Am,ér_i‘ca_re_q'u_ifel‘éhést the ._m'ar_l_aée'mént"s'f s
" discussion and-analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4 - 9 and 35to be presentedto "~

~supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility 'of mé:nagemgnt and, v
. although not a- part of: the ‘basic.financial statements, is_required by. the Governmental  Accounting

R

~Town of ‘Westernport, Maryland’s internal' control, - -




. ".Standards Board who consuders |t to- be an essentral part of frnancral reportrng for placmg the basrc:..’ e
_.’fmancral statemeénts. in’ ah appropriate operatnonal economic; or hlstorrcal context.- | have applred}-,,
‘ certam lrmrted procedures to, the requu'ed supplementary mformatlon |n accordance wrth audatmg S

o '?'.'standards generally accepted ;n the™ Unrted States of Amenca whrch consrsted of mqurnes of . ',""' ne

' ’management about the methods of preparlng ‘the mformatron and comparrng ‘the information’ for-'_"_ '

consrstency wrth managements responses to my. mqumes the basrc frnancral statements and other-'.?’_ :

' knowledge I obtalned durmg my audit ‘of the basic financial statements "l do not express an opmron or. L
o provrde any .assurance on- the’ snformatron because the limited procedures do not provlde me wrth. AR
L _"suffrcrent evrdence to. express an oplnlon or provide any assurance - ‘ : o

o Su‘pplementary Infor_m_atmn.; : _ .' v

-":_MV audlt was conducted for the purpose of formmg oplnrons on the frnancral statements thatff".'*‘
_collectrvely compnse the! Town of Westernport Maryland’s basrc frnancral statements . “The

s ; '_accompanyrng comblmng statement of. net posrtlon = proprretary fund is presented for purposes of;‘_;' o .

addrtronal ‘analysis.and is not a requrred part of the basrc frnancral statements ‘Such information is thef L
. responmbrhty of management and Was. denved from- and relates drrectly to the underlymg accountlng__' SRR

o —and other records used ta prepare the: basrc f‘nancral statements The mformatron has been subjected-;'_‘ R i

" 1o the audrtlng procedures applied in.the" audrt of the: basrc frnancral statements and certain addrtzonal_l_"'
‘procedures mcludlng comparing and reconcrlmg such rnformatlon drrectly to the underlyrng accountmg;. A

' and other: records used.to prepare the.basic financial statements or to’ the basrc financial. statements

: - ‘_themselves and other ‘ddditional procedures in: accordance with audztlng standards generally accepted ] .
- incthe Umted States of America. - In iy opinion, the- combrnrng statement of net position = proprletary TR
e ,’-fund is. farrly stated |n aII matenal respects |n relatlon to the basrc frnancral statements asa. whole - ‘

Other Reportmg Retwlred bv Government Audrtlng Standards : 1 Do ; '

' ~."In accordance with Government Audrtmg Standards I have also |ssued my report dated February 9 s

©..2023; on my: cons:deratlon of the Town of Westernport Mary]and’s mternal control over financial "

'",.Z‘__reportrng and-on my test of |ts compllance W|th ‘certain provrsrons of laws, regulatlon contracts and

""'f_.grant agreements and other matters The purpose of that report is soIer to descnbe the scope of my - B

testing of mternal control over: ﬁnancral reporting and compllance and the results of that testing, and

' not to provrde an, oprnron on the effectiveness of the Town of Westernport Maryland s, mternal controlz s

i"". -'fover frnancral reportmg or on compltance That report is an integral part of an- audlt performed in -
~-..accordance W|th Government Audltrng Standards in consrdenng Town of Westernport Maryland’ -

x mternal control over fmancral reportmg and complrance

"nd Maryland &l

.February 9, 2023




e TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND :
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS UNAUDITED
B JUNE 30 2022 o

: _Our drscussron and analys1s of the ﬁnancral performance of the Town of Westernport Maryland prov1des an :
;",..overv1ew of the Town’s flnanc1al activities for the fiscal year ended June. 30, 2022, We encourage readers o
'_.use the followmg 1nformatron in conjunction with. the basic fmancral statements and the, accompanymg notes to, ]

” L the ﬁnancral statements as: referred to in’ the table of contents

- | Fmancml nghllghts

X >At Jurie - 30 2022 the assets. of the Town of Westernport Maryland exceeded the llabrhttes by

' $22,464,197. . Unrestricted net position was $848,722:.

) > ~Net posrtron ‘increased by $933,040 from. June 30 2021 to June 30 2022 The 1ncrease is prnnarrly e

' ,-attrlbuted to Cares Act Furids recerved

5 > The fund balance of the ‘sovernmental funds 1ncreased by $367 398 frorn $2 930 095 at June 30 2021 to o

e 83,297, 493.at June 30: 2022 “This is attributed to.the excess of revenues over expendttures - RN
7 The total debt of the Town 6f Westernport Maryland decreased. by $8 332, : S
T The unass1gned ﬁmd balance for the general fund was: $3 098 994 at .Iune 30 2022

S f-,’_()vervww of the Fmancral Statements

Thrs dlscuss1on and analysrs 1s mtended to serve as an 1ntr0duct10n to the bas1c ﬁnancral statements The ba31c '
-'_‘"-‘ﬁnanmal statements comprrse three components By government “wide: ﬁnancral statements,” 2): fund ﬁnan01al
 statements, and 3) notes to-the financial statements In add1t10n to the bastc ﬁnanc1al statements th1s report'“ SR

3 -_1".conta1ns other supplementary 1nformat10n i

- o _'Government-w1de ﬁnancral statements The government wrde flnancral statements are desrgned to provrde
. the reader w1th a broad overvrew of the TOWn 5 ﬁnances m a format that 18 comparable to a. prrvate sector

o busmess ‘

; T he Statement of Net P051t10n presents 1nformat1on on all of the Town S: assets habrhtres and deferred 1nﬂows L
vl ofr resources with the drfference between the two reported as net position,” Over time, Jincreases and decreases ne
- 'net position may serve as a useful mdrcator of whether the ﬁnancral posmon of the Town 18 1mprov1ng or'-' P

. deterroratmg

I 'The Statement of Act1V1t1es presents 1nforrnat10n showmg how the Town $ net posruon changed dunng the most 3
o 7"'recent ﬁscal year. : CAll changes in net position are- reported as soon as. the underlymg event giving rise o the -
. change oceurs, regardless of thie timing of related.cash flows. Thus, revénues and expenses are reported in this,
. 'statement for some items. that will only: result 1n cash ﬂOWS 1n future ﬁscal perrods (1 e. uncollected taxes and L
,eamed but unused compensated absences) : : - - S

S -'Both of the government wrde flnancral statements d1st1ngursh funct10ns of the Town that are prmcrpally- L

S -supported by taxes and 1ntergovernmental révenues. (governmental actrvrtles) from other functrons that are .~

" “intended to recover all or a s1gn1flcant ‘portion’ of their- costs through user fees and- charges (busmess -type |
UL adtivities). ‘The governmental aetivities of the Town include general administrative services, public safety -
-~ (policé-and ftre) public. works (malntenance and streets) and recreatton (parl(s) The busmess type actlvrtres of s

o . the Town tnclude water sewer and garbage Operat1ons




L TOW'N OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND L
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS UNAUDITED
IUNE 30 2022

L The Statement of Net Pos1t10n and the Statement of Actlvrtres are; prepared usrng the full accrual basrs of . _' |
‘accounting. . The full’ aecrual - bas1s of accounttng recogn1zes revenue when earned and expend1tures are. ek

A recogmzed when rncurred

L 'j-"r.'_'Flmd ﬁnancral statements A fund is‘a grouprng “of related accounts that is used to malntaln control over .

- resources that have been- segregated for specrﬁc activities or Ob_]eCtIVGS _The. Fown; hke ‘other.state and local

o governments; ‘uses * find - ‘accounting  to ensure and’ demonstrate comphance ‘with finance- related. legal.
R 'requtrements All of the funds of the Town can. be d1v1ded mto two categorres 1) govemrnental funds and 2)
'propnetary funds o PRSI e FT S S e o

1 _-*{Governmental funds Governmental funds are used 10, account for essentlally the same f'unctlons reported ag - <
SR governmental act1v1t1es in the’ govemment—w1de ﬁnancral staterments -However,. unlike- the: government—wrde. o
~.- financial statements; governmental fund - ﬁnancral ‘statements: focus on near-term inflows_and- outflows of . P
e spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable résotrces. available at the end of the ﬁscal year Such e

e 1nfonnat10n may be useful 1n evaluatmg a gOVernment ] near-term ﬁnanctng requrrements

=k o Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of government—wrde ﬁnanctal staternents 1t is i

o useful to compare the 1nforrnatton presented for: goVemmental funds with similar; 1nformatton presented for iy
"o vgovernmental: activities in” the’  government-wide financial statements, By . domg s0, readers may .better * .
.- understand-the long—term rrnpact of the Town’s near-term ﬁnancrng dec1s1on Both the- governmental fund -~ i
. balance: sheet and the governmetital fund- statement of revenues, expendttures and changes in fiind balances EET

o '-;'provrde a reconcdtanon to fac1htate this comparlson between govermnental funds and governmental act1v1t1es '_ :._.-‘ :

2 L-_fThe Town malntalns tWo. 1nd1v1dua1 govennnental funds Informauon is presented separately in. the s

"‘ .governmental balarice sheet and in the govemmental fund statement of revenues expendltures and changes in’
R fund balances for the general fund and spe01al revenue fund e ~ TS TR

. k The Town adopts an annual appropnated budget for its generat fund A budgetary companson statement has 3:"‘ e

x “-been provrded for the general fund to demonstrate comphance wrth thls budget

- Proprretary funds The Towu mamtalns one: enterprrse fund that is USed to report the same functlons presented .
S as busrness~type actmtres in the govemment wide- ﬁnancral statements speclﬁcally, water sewer and garbage

B ;.'Proprletary funds prov1de the same type of rnformatlon as. the govemment-wlde ﬁnanc1al statements only in .
- more detail. " The, propnetary fund financial statements provrde 1nformat10n for water sewer, and garbage e

- ‘-:';_..‘ thlch are cons1dered to. be major funds of the Town

. ‘Notes to the ﬁnancral statements The notes provrde add1t10nal 1nformat10n that is essentlal to a full S
S understandmg of the data provrded n the government w1de and fund ﬁnanc:lal statements :

o Government—wrde I*mancral Analysns

'_The Town s total net posmon as of June 30 2022 was, $22 464 197 The largest portton of net assets 1s the net

: :'1nvestment 1n caprtal assets, in the. amount of $21, 363,057.. Restricted net position in the amount of $10 478 is - .
- - -restricted to use for’ ehglble activities as. stipulated by the Cares Act, $170,057 is restrlcted to street’ paving, g
el $11 994 restncted for the ﬁre department and $59 889 is restrrcted for Bay Restoratlon fees due to the State of o




TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND
MANAGEMENT S, DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS UNAUDITED

JUNE 30 2022

-Maryland The unrestrlcted portlon is $848 722 At the end of the current ﬁscal year net assets reﬂected a :f_:"

D ;posmve balance for the Town asa whole The followmg is a condensed statement of net posmon' :

'_Busmess Type Actnvattes

2021

‘ . Governmental Actmtles

2022 i) L L2022

BT

11,730,033

3 598,;951‘:" 3,582,007

SR 802,492 5

o (1 24809)."

( 1_,573.99__3);

g 26,’00_0;’31

127,730,345 |

:
H
H
i

5, 384 439‘ b

- 24,752,220 |

30,080,547 | | -

5,328,327 1.

322,800

610,360 {} -
248362

. 127,083

409 485

8,026,815

522 575

7-,517;7.3

653 647;

8 171,377

737413 567,061

L 7.811,977

" 7 604 316 1 3 549; 390i

754,197 7 |

252,418

. (1 822 585};'

362,680

848722.?‘ (e

: 17 646, 759

Tt

X '4;,590;9_14.‘5; -ﬁ4;si7,'438

16, 940 243 ;

' 21, 531 157_.

22, 464 197;1 SRR

The change in net posmon for the year Was favorable when combmmg the governmental act1v1t1es and the'_-- L
o "7bumness -type entlttes in the amount of $933 040. The priot year change in’ net-assets was unfavorable when S
s combmmg the’ govemmental activities and the business type activities by $381;376. The: breakdown of the two_ R
v _{'reports a increase in net assets in. the bus1ness -type entity in’ the' amount of $706 516 and an increase in the - .7
-‘governmental “activities in the. ainount of $226, 524. .The net increase in the busmess-type entlty 1ncludes SR
__'_‘-deprec1atlon expense in the amount of $1.008,786: The unfavorable change from the prlor year s attrlbuted to'f L
e deprecxatlon. The followmg isa condensed statement of changes in: net posxtlon ' '

72008008 T
28,687,454
30,695,463




r-'."'Revenues S
- Program: Revenues

General Revenues

B PropertyTaxes S ‘

. “Income Taxes R
e Franchlse Taxes'

SR nghway UserTax

Licenses and, Perm|ts e

Charges for Servrces

'Gra nts

‘_Ag_lnvestment Income

lscellaneous Revenue

Expenses \
General Government
o PUbIIC Safety

Street De pa rtme nt

'Recreatlon and Parks o

o Water.© Do e e

Sewer

Garbage g

: Interest on Long-Term Debt

’ ;Mlscellaneous

: th.a‘l !_Ex‘_pens‘e‘s g “

lncrease m Net’ Posmon
- <Net Posmon Julyl

' 5_Net Pusmon June 30

I

otal Revenue L e

TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND

Lo JUNED0,2022

MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS UNAUDITED

Gove r mental Activstles

Busmess-Type Actlwtles

' -'___.'Changes'-in.N_et'_Po's-j'_tE';un'...:"_ DRt

Tota I

L ogat0
133,294
24,621 ¢

2021 2022

91601 -
, 3}085'-':' -

Bore ‘
5549':":_
L1220

01,963
06817 0
36808 L
09321

.‘4,18'31"',

850279
52,585

2021 o072

_-1'175 105 -
475,108 -
2966
10,475

,2011 =

1,285,063 "
1 588,006

3984107

133,294

i
9,601

3,085 '

1176105 .
A 485 082
'_ 2814_-”' :

© 9,515 7
31,557

s 2022

4 181

o ~684 660 f g

198,396

2733400 A_
.'.'365 516 -
45, 737 e

68,015

1,565,745 - 0 1.665,650.

198, 288_.'l
28,510 e
9894877"'_"'_ _
48,714 S

606,408

78202

1118632

142,008,
: 152 558 P
7,082 - .

.i_-ﬁi,sis,esa‘ S

ee306
365516
B Y
1'27'43'0'4:';;‘,{;;? 18,63
580,686
133; 301']'?'_ :
173,994,
7082: R

1,118,633

. 606,408°

142,008
. 152558
75,007

133300
Ca7zgea

'-"85,304':_' s o

704,998 .. 1,339,221

(20, ‘338).-"
4,611,252 .

’ _2,025‘,‘688

(361 0’38)-'. R
17,301,281

‘ "226,5'24
1 59_0,914" i

2,169, 367 2731686 .
: 7’06;5_1_'_6‘. SHI
16,940,243 . -

(384,376) -

© 21,912,533

S 3508588

" 77933,040

J1531,157

4 590 914

16 940 243

‘ 4,817,438 .

17,645,-7’59f_

CUaussnisy

246487

e 401,963
106817 e
ee508
109321#.”_

1285063 L
2433 285 . 0 -

" 6894
. P 52595,7 R
2350 310, N o

egdas7. .




: TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND I e
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS UNAUDITED B
JUNE302022 : ‘

| FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

R Governmental funds - The fund hnan01ai statements prov1de 1ntormatron on the ﬁnanc1al posrtlon and results of e

. ','éfoperatlon fortwo d1fferent funds. - T contrast to the government- -wide ﬁnanc1al stateimets the: governmental fo

ffunds ‘balance sheet reports only the curtent’ asséts and llablhtres -Thé ‘total fund’ balances at June 30, 2022 [RRAE
T were $3, 297,493 an increase .of $367,398. from the prior year. The unas51gned fund balance total i is $3, 098 ,994

< in the general fund. The restricted fund balance is $186; 505 in the. general fund and-$11, 994 in the Special -

- ’—.Revenue Fund. The statement of revenues, expendltures and: changes - funid - balances governmental funds- . e

RTINS reports the détail on the- revenues and expendttures for-the two funds ‘The: prlmary source of operating revenue: - S

-i""_'Lls derived from taxes." Taxes: 1nclude real estate taxes, personal propeity taxes, local income taxes and franchrse e

n "-.'-taxes Deferred ll‘lﬂOWS of resources totaled $84 331 at.June 30 2022 a decrease of $3; 349 from the pI‘IOI‘ year R

e ;Proprretary funds - The Town S proprretary fund statements provrde the same type of 1nf0rmat10n found 1n the EA
. '-governmental wide. ﬁnanc1aI Statements, only’ in mor¢ detail. < The: total unrestiicted: net: pOSIthI'.l of ‘the .. -
S proprtetary funds:atthe end ‘of the year reported. a deficit of $2, 225, 197 The net. Investment in cap1tal assets e
Lo WaS $l9 812 067 and restrrcted net pOSItiOH was $59 889 Gverall the net posrtron was $l 7 646 759 L

-.--{.GENERAL F UND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

e :The Town d1d not amen;Lthe budoet for the ﬁscal year ended June 30 2022 The actual revenue exceeded thei‘;_ T
ERe '__..budgeted revenue by ‘5996 386 - The. actual expendltures were more.. than, " the budgeted expendrcures by S

“7.$626,329.. The overall budget variance was- favorable in the amount of: $370 057 The varrances are pnmanly e
SR attnbuted to Cares Act E unds recuved and spent that was not budgeted ke :

;-__'::CAPITAL ASSETS SRR ‘;':f_ 5 ‘7 -;: =
a The Town y Investment o capttal assets COHSIStS Ofla“d buﬂdlngs eqlllpment tnfrastructure parks sue costs S

" l.work il progress’ and: Vehlcles The net investment. i caprtal assets ‘at- June 30 2022 totaled $28 687 454 The o N
B follow1ng table summanzes the Town § caprtal assets ' o : ‘ R

Summaryof Capltal Assets "_- B
(Net of Deprematlon)

_ R } »;'Gb'vern_r_‘.n_éhtalActiviti_és-- Busmesszype Act|wt|es : e : . o
Land - Fiel 5 ) T 70,033 S 5486 | S
‘ Bulfdings . . Lo S 547-’9_5:%; L :

o Equupment&Vehicles '_ : _ L _. 132512

o fastucure o i CUI4B50 o ggmagsyg
Parks e T 39504 R |

':"-',‘:Sl’ce Costs Moran Manorn”.-‘ - :_ 17789‘-

- _Closmg Costs et S S 13;4;951 FE
: - s -'1;_802_-,49.2"_- S . .. 268492




o TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND L
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS UNAUDITED R
w JUNE 30 2022 e

R LONG TERM DEBT

" 'At June 30 2022 the Town had debt outstandmg totalmg $7 324 397 The governmental actrvrtles had debt -

_' o outstandmg in the amount of $251 502 and the busmess—type activities: had $7 072, 895 outstandlng at year end -;:..j
B The notes payable 1nereased from the pI‘lO] year in the amount of $8 332 | _:. o . .

i-lECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEARS BUDGET AND RATES

S The Mayor and Commtssroners of the Town of Westernport expett 0 eontmue to sec cash flow reductlon The-_' s ‘:
- ‘[_""Mayor and Comm1ssroners have - started addressmg this. - issue* by reduemg “personnel expenses; and. o
o _‘Jmcreasmg water rates w1th goals t0 rmprove the customer base by addmg the Crty of Predmont as a; water
_.'--f'.;customer ' o e s : L : ; o » e

. '_;-The Town of Westemport has completed the Phase IV Water prOJeot and Llncoln Drlve Sewer Rehabrhtatron S
- Phases V'-VII Water project has started with construction to begln in the fall of 2023 The new Water and sewerj RS

: ._'system w1ll decrease both systems operatlon and marntenance costs e

T CONTACTING THE TOWN S F INANCIAL MANAGEMENT |

3 o townhall@townofwesternport us'-

Thrs ﬁnanmal report is desrgned to provrde our c1t12e11s taxpayers eustomers and credrtors wrth a generali-‘,ﬁ‘,_'--_i:'-,ﬂ,_
S overv1ew of the Town’s' fmances and ta-show the Town’ s. accountab111ty for the money it receives. If: you have .+ -
o, cany questrons about this. report: or . need addrt1onal ﬁnanoral mformatlon contact the Honorable Mayor Judy ¢

" - Hamilton “or ‘Clerk Treasurer Renee Moms at: PO Bo>\ 266 Westernport MD 21562 Ernarl the town at"_ o =




N JTOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND
'STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022

Governmental

Actnntles e

__BUsi_nese}f-ype DA

L -ASSETS
'_Current Assets
" :-Cash and Cash’ Equlvalent
' e Restncted Cash" R R SRS
' -Accounts Recewable net ofallowance for doubtful accounts
*Internal Receivable” - i RO
) R . Taxes Recelvabie, net of ailowance for doubtful accounts

S5
2,864, 644

84, 331
138 362

" Activities

$ 772609 ¢

© . 59,889 .
178,530 -

- (2,864,644)

L Tow ¢

o ssgsy
229,077

84,331

Llnvestments . T
Total Current Assets S

S ;Capital A'ssets' '
Non—depreuable - R
Depreaabie netof accumulated depret:latlon

L

— "..-3_,582,007 7

70 033

1,732,459 -

5 485

26 879 476"

(1,853616).

75519 L

©.28,611,935°

Total Capltal Assets net of accumulated deprecanon :

- N '1802492

'.lq_"Non—current Assets T .
" Pue-from UPRC, net ofallowance fordoubtfulacr:ounts o

Notes Recewable

: 2._6,8_8.4,962: R

S lsen

218 889

Sosae
. 218,889,

Total Non~current Assets

TOTALASSETS S R %

5,384,499 -

219 729'- §

s 25,251,‘075 -

2197290

$' - 30635,574

- .LIABILITIES
'_Current Ljabllltres

“Accounts: Payable andAccrued Expenses T R s T

 Salaries. and Benefits. Payable S

-Bay, Restorat:on Fees Payable - ;
o Accrued Interest Payab[e A

' 'Current Portlon of Long -Terti Debt

43 979

193,020 .
Ce0es

$° ‘106435
18,846

34,143
237810
213826,'__ L

24 911‘-
34,143 . S
T22,979:

" 262,805

_-244 162

Totai Current Llablhtles co

Noncurrent L|ab|i|t|es

" UPRCJudgment Payabfe

. Pension Obligation L
‘ E_ong~Term Debt, net ofcurrent portlon '

C 115376
;- 207, 523"

401,031

'92'411._._'_-_; '
256,805 .
6854069,'- S

7,061,592 -

Total Noncurrent Llablhtles

' .*.TOTAL-_UABILITIES e L

K -322 899

’ --"567 051

7 203 285 E

7604316'

g3

UNET POSJTJON _ L
Netlnvestment in- Capltal Assets o
~* Restricted ' '

1 550 990
S 192, 529

3073919,

1'9'812'067" -

. 59,880
~ {2,225, 197)

e 21 363 057

253,418 0
848,722

L Unrestncted

TOTAL NET POSITIDN 5 e T

4,817,438

S 17,646,759

| " The accompanying riotes are an integral part of these financial statements.

100

$ 722,464,197

o0

138362
1728301 i

28,687,454 . .

645193 ¢ i

‘a2 411}_:'
372,181

7526188 - -
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- Investments

e Salarles and Benefrts Payab|e ol 6 065'_ e

- “-TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND
' 7 BALANCE SHEET '

. GOVERNMENTAL FU NDS
o JUNESO 2022

-~ General fund "~ " Revenue Fund "

TotaJ Govern mental
Funds .

" Cash and Cash equivalents. =

o Téxes’-Rebéivable':_. S i I 84;331 i L

' JUEE AT e 432129 7§ 11,994 s iJ
- Accounts Receivable: LU0 sgsag e

a4z, 123';_"_] S
CSO0,547. -
84331 .
1383627

].-_: : :Internal Recelvabies PRV 2864644 g o

'TQTALASSETS R e O e e

2 864 644';_"'_- R

- 3,58’2,007_5}- R

. LiABILITIES

- ACCOunts Payable and Accrued Expenses R : ‘_ 194 118{, L S

soss‘:;' e

200 183'-3;5_' Sty

TOTAL LIABILITIES e e ‘20.0‘,1_83- G

DEFERRED INFLOWS oF RESOURCES

_Unavallable revenue property thES v i = 84‘,‘:3'31‘ o

84331 L

'-TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES?“ U gasm

o FUND BALANCES *

ﬁiMWMMQMfTQQQﬁ;?DﬁQ‘fﬁfﬁﬂ@@Dﬁ{:gquﬁ%”"

o ga331

198499

oo U”ass'g"Ed -:'.f DTl Tl 3,008,998

3098904

N TOTALFUND BALANCES Sl 3oesage U Tdiged

TOTAL LIABILITIES DEFERREDINFLOWS op-;'{‘.{:- o

o sgonam

© RESOURCES, AND FUNDBALANCES .~ & ' 3570013 s." ‘11904 5 -

* The accompanying notes are an integral partof these-financial statements:™ -

3,582,007 T




TOWN OF WESTERN PORT MARYLAND

RECONCTLIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30 2022

' """.'-"-T.O'Fa_l,Fﬁdn_d'_.ﬁé.laﬁées-:Géue'rn'mé“ta”'“'“ds‘ o

Capltal assets used in governmental actwrtres are not fmanual resources and

L therefore are not reported in the governmentalfunds : -b IR
Governmental caprtal assets net of accumu]ated deprecratron e

AR Accounts recervable for taxes not collected wrthln 60 days after year end SR
‘ are reported as deferred rnﬂows of resources |n the governmental funds -

Unavallable revenue property taxes

-‘-':_Long-term pensron obhgatlon are not due and payable in’ the current perlod ; s .

i and therefore are not. reported as Irabrlltles in the funds o

Long term habllrtres are not due and payable m the current perlod and
o therefore arénot- reported as Irabrlrtres in the funds SR -
' Long-term Debt g ’ 2 :

" “Total Net Position - Governmental Activities,

L sare

LEsLs02)

The accompanyrng notes are an lntegral pa rt of these fmancral statements

13




‘ : TOWN OFWESTERNPORT IVIARYLAND o AN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNIVIENTAL FUN DS

L FOR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30 2022

: _;"“Re'venues e
: -Taxes . Sk
' .;‘__}Licenses and Permlts g

:,Intergovernmenta! Revenue

: Mlscellaneous Revenues
flnvestment mcome

Ear ETO.TALZREVENU Es*

E EXPENDITURES

Current

A 'General Government
'_-];*PLIbIIC Safety IR
o Parks Recreatlon & Culture' IR

) _Publlc Works

'}Debt R
S 'Mlscellaneous
o '_‘Capatal OutIay

R TC)TAL EXPENDITURES

';I:'OTHER FINANCENG SOURCES (USES)

_ : V_Transfer ABUREANVRENEE
e Loan Proceeds R
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USESI :

A ,." , Net Change m Fund Balances j' -
o FUND BAI.ANCE JULY 1 2021

' _FUND BALANCE JUNE 30 2022

" The accompanying notes are anintegral part 6f the financial statements:

General
Fund

SpECIaI

Revenue Fund. -

B ':,T-otal

40,690 .

959,600 .

-52,595
4 080--‘,, L

Y 512 129 LU
40,650
959,600
152,505

4080 Lo

r.:'181 029..:‘_- o
L5000
.232,07'6 SR

43723 v

20851

r '23,51'0"-""1';','

£285100
o
R =iepk
174,515

. | .‘_. 229’587 = = :

S 229587

767368 -

o Excess of Re'v_en‘ue_s O've'r Expen'ditures.-;_f_ ST _:?730"37\'52'_ o

.‘:I"?k??é)_ .

""_:.,-:-('6-5(').,8:18) A
- 250,000 R

(410 818)

370 057

2 915 442

. (é-io,‘s‘lg')

367 398

Caess

o ,2,'930;095,. Lo

-'5,-3,2'85,499 =

19

$ 11,994 -

$3297,493 0 .

790878




‘ : : B : TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND ; o :
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES ANDS CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE
. STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES . ‘

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

: 'frofa'iﬁNe"t"'CHa'hges_i_ri'F'una BelenEe ;de‘e’rn'r_r\e‘htalrunds: e e e T e gy aeg

’ 'Amounts reported for governmental actl\ntles m the
T statement of actwltres are dlfferent because B

_ Governmental funds report capltal cutlays as expendltures However in the statement of e . Sl )
. activities, tHe cost of those assets is depraciated: over their estlmated useful !|ves Deprec:atlon B I R 7' -1
; expense 5157 128 and capltal outlays 5229 587 R SR e

' :_Repayment of note proceeds ISR, expendrture in'the governmentalfunds t:ut the T S RN LT o
repayment reduces Iong—ferm !labllatles in the statement of posatron ', ST e ERORTERR R s 36,793 S

L _Ldan'Proce'eds _f-. R o :.i:- U . : _"."-‘:_ R ',‘.':::' . e (zlr,.(j_,golc)_)'

Decreaee’in Ieng-term nen'si__on"‘oblrigati(jn Ce e : SR ': ST T et T 3,233 :

‘f Some revenues reported in the statement of; acti\ntjes dD not prowde current fmancra\
resources and therefore are not reported as’ revenues in governmental funds -

Deferred |nf|ows ofresources PropertyTaxes Decreased T S A‘ R o S {3 349}_ RS

Total change |n net pesrtion of governmenta! actlwtles - o

h The acccmpanymg nctes dare'an |ntegra| part of these ﬂnancral statements
B . e 15 . .

s 226524




i Cu_rrénf 'A_Sé.etsf:" t

TOWN oF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND
- ' STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ~
- PROPRIETARY: FUND '_ _' __
T ' JUNE30;2022 '~

S Cash o L §. 772,609
. RestrictedCash el D o U g g -
Accounts Recervable o l ‘ 173,530 o
' Total Current Assets i I T T 1,‘011,028 R

‘CapltalASSets e T T T T
“ . Non- deprecnable B AL D R T ST 5486

L Deprec:able net: of accumu[ated deprematlon -ﬁ‘-_-\ R 26 879, 476 o

o ‘ Totai Capltal Assets, net ofaCcumulated depreuatnon : f‘ EEN 26 884 962

'- ‘j--Non current Assets

L omuassers

* ' Due from UPRC net of ailowance for doubtful accounts - e ;'_' 840 o
~ Notes Recewable R R S I T 3': 218,889
Total Non-current Assets e ‘_ EERHR P 219 729

T 's 28 115 719

. LEABILITIES

| ','._‘_Current Llabllltles

v Accounts Pavable S 106 435

R . "Bay: Restoratlon Fees: Payable

. Salariesand Beneflts Payable e LT 18 846
U Accrued Interest Payable .y I R I : 2_2 78.1,- -
" Due'to Other Funds o B S 712}854.544": S

e “Current Portion.of Long~term Debt BRI N V207,280

o TotaiCurrent Llablhtres -:;--,: T e T ’-3;274,1’29.,';_-f: o

o ,'Noncurrent Llabl|ltles

UPRCJudgment Payable . | 92’411 ER

“Pension Obligation -~ " [0 56,805

. f-Net POS!tIOI’I

Notes: Payable iéss current’ port|on e B ) 6,845,615 S
L Total Noncurrent Llabllltles s T T Sl 7,194,831 0

;:-':7 T’o_'TAL*LjaAB:L}T'i,ES‘ L 10 4pg,ge0

NET'PbS,ITloN L

Net Investment in. CapltaJAssets ) o 19,812,067
- Restncted e L S Lo 59,889 .
S Unrestncted -i S L L (2,225197)

‘ Total Net Posmon s . ERTR 2 :17',646,.75'9' e
TOTAL LIABILITJES AND NET POSITION T $ 38, 115 719

The accompanymg notes are-an mtegral part of these fmanmai statements




'(_Z:J‘pe'r_'ating'"R'eVEn'ne"S\ S

: Operatmg Expenses

. iAutomobile expense _

“.. Advertising and promotmn R

o }';,.Deprec:atlon NIRRT

""-.'f‘._‘-lnsurance B e
Payroll taxes and benefxts

T Professmnal fees
L Purification o
‘.'Repairs and’ Mamtenance
' ‘-'?',Salanes and wages
S -,Operatmg
- Supplies
G Travel T
.. Donation” -
"'.;'Utllltles TR
Total Operatmg Expenses S

Operatlng income (Loss)
o NON OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Admmistratwe fees : L

\ interestlncome o
Interes_'_c_expense_

- 'FundTransfer ‘ .
".' Capltal Contrrbutions grants

Cha’nge i .Net Po'sition‘ o
E ﬁ TOTAL NET POSITION JULY L, 2021

B TOTAL NET POSITION JUNE 30 2022

oy " Office Expense e

Town of Westernport Maryla nd

: _jG_e‘rbag'e-' .

Statement of Revenues Expenses and Cha nges In Net Posmon -
' e S Proprletary Fund- e e
For the Year Ended June 30 2022 S

- Waté'_r"

S5 se18s S

:'55A¢9;T_ L
295
681356[.. :
6,327
22,289
; 11216}'j::”
42,9127
SUBL635
'  237309-f5”“j
1552_;}'*”
238211;

"S_'e,.wer,

277 772

oM
327,430

$ 145 136 S

Cags

BRI TAN

104 233
123 430

'To'ta.l_Non—ﬁdpér'a"cing,R'é_\:ren'ue_e(-E*pens'e‘s)- o

'":-Inceme,'(lb_ss).be'f.er'e‘eont’ri'bu'_t_iqn's" o

000 0
67,675

g2

_ Total

366

»'1003786, ;;'@~,;1:;;1
L1234
35365 0
131,329 0
L8939 o
L a2912
Coeas
342,042 0
258218*’f,nf
24054”;ﬁf'
o UT] 7,038 v
50000, .

68,537

1,274,304 -

(129

L (sgo1).
5L

gt

(302,914)

133,301 0o

11,835

sy
2,763

1988291

oo qro3pz) o

Szesay, o
L2814

5 fuisﬁméyf -

(179369rg"

L (173 994)-1_-‘_ Tl E

(591 513)' a

_-660,8,18 R

iple7

| (301,807)

s

VL {178 262) PR

ssia0)

660,818

927,188

7725842 .

(301,807

9,191,470

22, 9311--.*

97188

'j'11 835 ..

: f7.0_6',516" SRR VA

. 16,940,283

L% 87223300

. '8.889,663

"34,766 g

S The accompanying notes are an intégral'paﬁ:-df'th_esefinancié_l'ls_'tafenq_'entsif

17,646,759 .

1,285,063




5 Net Change in Cash :
I " Cash'and Cash. Equwalents }uly 1 2021
:,".-_5-_Cash and Cash Equwalents June 30, 2022

ProprIeta ry Fund

Town of Westernport Maryland
Statement of Cash Flows

For The Year Ended June 30 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

S ReceIpts from Customers and Users

" Payments to Vendors ' R L .
_‘ k';._'Payments to Employees L R SR
"_'_Net Cash PI’OVIdEd by Operatmg ActIv:tIes

CASH FLOWS FROIVI NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer from Other Fund 0
" Net Cash’ Recewed from Other Funds :
Net Cash Prowded by Noncaplta! FInancmg ActIVItIes

CASH FLOWS FROIVI CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVlTlES
urchase of CapItal Assets L

: PrInCIpal Paid on Loans L |

Grants Recelved for. CapItaI Imprevements T
_ interest. Paid on Loans - ' ey

.- Bay.Restoration’ Fees

AdmInIstratIve Fees

Net Cash Used by CapItaI and Related Fmancmg ActIVItIes i". s

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Income T A
Net Cash Prowded by Investlng ActIVItIes o

' '_.3:“.RECOHCIlIat10n of OperatIng Inc0me to-Net: Cash Prowded
. By Operating, ActIVItIes ' '
_ "?Operatmglncome (loss) - L
_ -Adjustments not Affectmg Cash e '

. ._I-DepreCIatIon U

. (lncrease) Decrease In Current Assets

. Accounts RecerabEe

Increase (decrease) in Current LIabIlItIes
_-Accounts Payable '
SalarIes and Benefits Payable ‘

s Net Cash Prowded by OperatIng ActIVItIes

. The accompanying notes are an‘integral part of t.h_e's‘e:—ﬁhanjcia'lfs_tatéme:hts.-’.,' Con

18

660,818
29726400
058082 -

(1,893436)

- “"“(’2’0‘4 875) .- _
1,009,327 )

s (172 764)
- (835)

o)

T (1,269,665)

o (46,953)

L.7$ 7. 832,498

Cieos7se

: (5397)

S Jeasre

1,247,266 0

. (607495) -

L 375,492) L
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TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F OR THE YEAR ENDED IUNE 30 2022

R NOTE 1 -SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES _

b Flnancml Reportlng Entltv

I "':The Town of Westernport Maryland was mcorporated in ]858 under the provrslons of S : i
" the laws of the State of Maryland The Town: operates under a Mayor/Commlssroners' e e

~form. of government and prowdes the. fOIIOng ‘services: general government,’ pubhc‘.g : S

safety, public works parks and recredtion. . The basi¢- ﬁnanc1al ‘statements - include the -

- departments; -agencies, and- other organizational - units ~over. which ‘the Mayor and "

'._}_','_-Cornmrssmners exercise oversrght respon51b111ty Un evaluatmg how to define - the;:.f-‘:_ el
"+ government ‘for. finaricial reporting: purposes, management has - cons1dered all poten‘naL

: "COmponent umts The’ decision to include a component unit: m the reportlng entlty was;’ o
._-made by applylng the: cr1ter1a set. forth in GASB Statements No 14 and No 39 Based on- .

S those cr1ter1a there are no component un1ts

- "The accountmg poircles of the Town conform to generally accepted account pr1nc1ples_iﬁ e

' -_'promulgated by the. Governmental -Accounting “Standards - Board " (GASB) .and other .
. authoritative sources identified in the Statement of Audrtmg Standards of the Arnerlcan'- A
L Inst1tute of Certrﬁed Pubhe Accountants - P T : v ‘ e

_' ;Basrs O'fPreSentatlon .': B

e {The Town S bas1c ﬁnancral statements consrst of government Wlde financral statements RO

4 including a statement of. net posrtron and a- statement of activities; and fund ﬁnanmal T

o 'statements whrch provrde a more detarled Ievel of ﬁnanmal 1nformatlon

. _Gove'rnm'ent-mde 'ﬁnanci'al' staternents '__, ‘

_‘_-The govemment—wrde ﬁnancwl Statements report 1nformat10n on all the nonﬁ dU.Claryl-_' : e
-+ activities of the. prlmary government. - ~Government activities, which are normally - .

supported by taxes and 1ntergovernrnental revenues, - are “repoited - separately frorn.'l

: _,busmess type actmtres whrch rely to. a srgmﬁcant extent on fees and charges for support C §

- _fThe statement of net posmon presents the ﬁnancml condltton of the governmental and ‘,‘ , o
- busmess type activities of the Town at year end “The’ staternent of actlvrtles presents a oo

~comparison betweern dlrect expenses and program revenues for each program 01 func‘non L

of the Town’s governrnental activities and for, the business- -type activities of the Town e
- Direct expenses-are those that are speerﬁcally assocrated 'with a service, prograrn' or .
'-_-department and therefore clearly identifiable to a parncular functlon Program revenues

. include charges pa1d by the recrprent ‘of the goods or services offered by the program and

. -grants and contribtions that' are- restricted 1o . ‘meeting, the | operatmnal or caprtal o

' _requ1rements of a. partlcular program Revenues ‘which are not cIassrﬂed as program

. revenues -are presented as general révenues of the Town. “The comparrson of direct -

- expenses with program révenues identifies the extent to which each business segment or"
-governmental functlon 18 self ﬁnancmg or draws from the general revenues. of the Town

o




TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS
o FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 ,'

N 'NOTE T -.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (contlnued)

'_Interfund act1v1t1es between governmental funds and between Uovernmental funds and EEDRS

. proprietary funds- appear asdue to/from on the Governmental Fund. Balance Sheet-and the . SR
" "Proprietaty “Fund‘Statement of" Net “Position. . All" interfuid transactions. between?-_-; PR
S governmental funds are elrmmated on the govet nment wrde statements o -

R ,Fund Fmancral Statements - Durmg the year the ToWn segregates transactlons related to S
3 ‘certain. Town functlons ‘or ~ activities - in- separate funds " in- order 'to aid ﬁnancral' A
<managernent ‘and- to demonstrate legal oompltance Fund - financial . statements are_”f; L
- designed to present financial information- of the Town.at th1s more-detailed- level." The , et F
focus of: governmental and proprietaty- fund ﬁnancral statéments is-on’ major funds. Each S
o ..proprretary and governmental fund ‘was ‘a major fund and 1s presented in; a separate'.

:‘ '-':.Fund Accountlng

_ -;The accounts of the Town are organlzed on the basrs of funds each of whlch 13,"--{:., e o
‘j_'con51dered 1o be a separate aceountlng entrty * The: ;operations .of each “fund ‘are
o surnmarlzed by prov1d1ng a separate set of self- balancmg acoounts ‘which. 1nclude Qs i
. .assets, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources. and fund: equlty, revenues and expenses or -
expendrtures The followmg funds are- used by the Town : >

| Governmental Fund Types = The Town utthzes two governmental fund types the" R
:'"-_‘General Fund' and ‘Special - Revenue Fund.- The General Fund is the general operating .-
" fund of the Town All financial resoutces, ‘except those: requifed 10 be-accounted forin
- ‘another fund are accounted for in the fund. The Specral Revenue Fund is used to recordf?.
| ‘;ﬁnancral transactrons relatlng o the fire department “The" ftre departrnent recerves ten:'.'- L

e cents of each $l 50 of real estate taxes colleoted by the Tovm

o Proprletary F und Type - The Town utrhzes one propnetary fund type the Water Sewer_ e
+.-and Garbage Fund ~ This. fund is used to account for the. operatlons which are ﬁnanced_; S T
~and operated ‘in a manner similar to private businesses. . The intent is that the costs” = -
_'(expenses, 1nclud1ng deprecranon) of prov1d1ng the sérvices'to. the general publicona -

: .'contlnumg ‘basis- is to be: fmanced or recovered prtmarrly through user charues R
: Therefore all revenues and expenses relatmg to provrdlng water sewer and garbage R

B servroes are aceounted for in these funds '

: 'MCaS.urem'e_nt FOCUS'

B iGovernment wrde F1nan01al Statements - The government—wrde ﬁnancral statements are” L
~prepared using the economtc resources measurement focus. "All assets,” all liabilities and =~ o
- deferred inflow .of TESOUrces assomated wrth the operation of the: Town are included-on .

- the statement of net posmon The staternent of: actrvrhes presents lncreases (1e
- f-_-revenues) and decreases (1 e. expenses) n total net posrtron - T
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Co - Basrs of Accountmg

TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND o
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2022

RN “NoTE 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (contmued)

o ,Fund FmanCIai Statements - -All governmental funds are accounted for usmg a ﬂow of e
- current. ﬁnanCIal resources measurement - focus.” With th1s measurement focus,” onIy IR
- current assets, - current IIabIhtIes and deferred inflow of resources generally are mcludedﬁ SRR
. on the balance sheet." The statement “of - revenues, expenditures and. changes infund o
‘balances reports on the sources (. revenues and other financing’ sources) and uses (&, 2.
"";expendItures and" other fInancrng uses) of current ﬁnanCIal resources. . -This approach D
- differs- from the' manner in which the governrnental activities of the govemment—vwde,-* e
i1 financial *statéments " arc . prepared “Govermental  fund financial stateients therefore . Lo
-7 include reconcrhatron with brief explanations-to- better IdentIfy the reIatronshrp between S e
o the govemment wrde statements and the statements for govemrnental funds RN

S -,ere the government WIde statements the proprletary funds are. accounted for ona ﬂow Sl A

Cooef £conomic resources measurement focus All-assets; all hablhtles and deferred 1nﬂow, R

.. of resources associated with the operatlon of these: ﬁlnds are Included on the statement: of L

‘. net position, . The statement: of changes in-fund net. position présents increases. (e.g. -

L 'revenues) and decreases (e g ‘€xpenses) in Tiet tota.l posmon The statement of cash ﬂows_""‘ ’ Ry
S provides mforrnatron about how the Town finances and meets the cash ﬂow needs Of its = e

-'f,;:_proprletaryfunds ' el A S B S EERER

s Basrs of accountlng determmes when transactrons are. recorded In the ﬁnancral records e

S land” reported on the ﬁnan01a.l statements Government-wrde frnancral ‘statements are . T

L .prepared using the accrual basrs of” accountmg Governmental funds ‘use the modlﬁed L D lE
7 decrual: basrs of accountmg Proprietary funds: ‘use: the. accrual ba51s of accountlng SRARR S
. Differences “in: ‘the “accrual - and modified accrual. basis’ of. accountmg arise in-the: .~ -

o ‘recognltion of revenue, the recordmg of deferred revenue and 1n the presentatron of S

v :‘expenses versus expendltures R : e ’

o f':The modrﬁed accrual ‘basis of accountmg is used by all govermnentaI fund types Under;,' T e
- “the modified-accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recoghized when susceptlble fo"

L A.accrual (Le. ‘when’ they become both meastrable. and available). “Measurcable” means o

'_,,-the amount of' the transactron can be determmed and “available™ means collectible: within =~

.7 -the current perlod o1 $00n - enough thereafter to be used to pay hablhtres of the current = -~

o 'perlod The Town considers property- taxes as ‘available if they are- collected W‘Ithln 60 -

~. - days’ after year-end Penaltres and interest: and mIsceIIaneous revenues are: recorded when

.- received: in- cash- since .they are generally not ‘measurable until actually collected -

fo Expendttures are recorded when the related fund 11ab111ty is. mcurred o :

_ jThe proprIetary funds are accounted for on a flow of economlc resources measurement-- SRR
;- and utilize the accrual basis of accountlng This basis of accountmg recogmzes revenues o
i the accountrng perlod in thch they are earned and become measureable and expenses




- TOWN OF WESTERNPORT, MARYLAND. -
NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

o NOTE I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (contmued)

B : In the aecountmg penod - thch they are meurred and become measureable All GASB o

- --_pronouncernents are followed i in the proprIetary fund. .FASB, APB Oplmons and ARBS’ _:-:";', . B
oo issiied on or before November 30 1989 are followed to the extent they do not eontradIctf -

o : ":';i'GASB pronouncements FASB pronouncernents Issued after Novémber 30, 1989 that are.
AR ._developed for. busmess entItIes are followed to the extent that they do not contradtct
iy :'_GASB o L RS ‘ _ et

; ‘In addltlon to lIabIlItIes the statement of ﬁnanmal posmon w1ll somenmes report a0 o
. Separate section for deéferred Inﬂows of . resources. . This .separate ﬁnancral ‘statement

© . element, deferred inflows of ‘resources, ‘Tepresents an ‘acquisition -of net position that"*"__
.,_"'-i:{apphes to' a-future perrod(s) and so will not -be recognized as an Inﬂow of résources- -
(revenue) until that. time.” The Town has only one-type of item, which arlses only under a
" modified - acerual basrs of accountlng, that qualIers for reportlng in this category. S T T

—'Aceordmgly, the item, unavallable reveriue, is reported only in the. governmental funds: s

: : balanee sheet: The governmental funds report ‘unavailable revenues from property- taxes, S :
Lt These amounts are- deferred and recogntzed as an, mﬂow of resources in the perlod that OFER NS

s the amounis become avallable

S Budgets and Budgetary Accountmg ‘

',';The Town follows these procedures in estabhshIng the budgetary data reﬂected in the”f":- ST

" financial stafements: . The' ‘Mayor submits to the ' Town Commissioners a proposed .~ - "

- " operating budget for the. fiscal year commeaclng July 1. The operating budget includes.

proposed expendltures and antlcrpated revenues, “A’ pubhc hearmg is’ conducted to obtairi - - i
- . ~taxpayer comments, and the budget is’ adopted in the form of an ordinance. Forrnal o
,.budgetary 1ntegratIon is employed as-a rnanagement control: deVICe durIng the year forthé " . -

: _:General Fund. The: budget is adopted ori a basis eonsrstent with generally aCCepted; o S
7. accounting prlncrples (GAAP): Budgét .amounts -are as: orlglnally adopted and 1o’
U ~an1endments were' rnade to the orIgInal approprlatlons Wthll were approved SR

" Cash and Cash Equwalents

: ‘4F0r fInarICIal statement purposes the Toer con51ders all short tem, hlghly 11qu1 d_:

" " investmens ‘with an orlgrnal maturlty of three rnonths of less to be cash and cashl-j. . S

: equ1valents




- TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022

S J'NorE I - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (contmued)

B ‘Investments

| . _.In accordance w1th GASB Statement No 31 "‘Accountlng and F 1nanc1al Reportmg for : - R
”-'Certam Investrnents, 1nvestments held at’ June 30, 2022 with ortglnal maturttles greater-_ ERA

- than one year are stated at fair valué, Fair. value i i$ estimated’ based on quoted market. . '

" -‘"'-'-__':_»prrces at year—end All 1nvestments not requlred to be reported at, falr value are stated at S

: ‘;_cost or arnorttzed cost R

,llf:Capltal AssetS -

General capltal assets are those assets not: specrﬁcally related to act1v1t1es reported in the e

proprretary funds These assets’ generally result from. expenditures in the governmental

. ‘funds. - These. assets -are . reported in the . -governmental . activities  column’ of ‘the = <~

-_.-_l}:’-{governrnenbwrde statement of net position but ar¢ net reported in’ the fund finanmal SRR
. staterents. Capltal assets: utlhzed by the-. propr1etary funds . are reported on the . e
L government-mde statement of. net pos1t1on under busmess type act1v1t1es and on the"f R
‘statement of net posmon propnetary funds SRR L -

L All caprtal assets are. capltallzed at cost (or estlmated hlstorlcal cost) When a capltall"-_\"-"."f_”' o

“asset’ig dlsposed or rétired, the eost and related accurnulated deprec1at10n is removed o o

] ._ :_i'zfrom the books with any'.gain or loss reflected as income.  The’ Town maintains a.
L 'capltahzatron threshold of $500. Public. domain - (mfrastructure) general ﬁxed assets:_' G

. inchuding roads; bridges, curbs and- gutters, sttects and’ sidewalks, drainage systems; and -

A lighting systems. are: capitalized alotig with other general fixed assets. Improvements are. - o

capltahzed the: costs of normal maintenance: and ‘repairs. tllat do not. add to the value of S
i -the asset or materlally extend an asset 'S Ilfe are not. L T : S

.All reported capttal assets except land are deprec1ated Improvements are deprecrated -

) Jover the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets Depreclatron is cornputed. L Sases

‘ Assets Years
"Sewers _*_ o 30 50
L ""'._‘PumpmgStatlons : S 25 - 50
L .-Machmery and Eqmpment o 5-25 ‘
. Damsand| Reservmrs ' 100_'. S
”‘F|Itrat|on Plant _ 10-50: - o
_ % Meters and Meter Boxes s
. .lDlstrlbutlon Malns B 50 0
Fire Hydrants 335
i _--Infrastructure B R
L -'SldewaIks/Pavmg/FIoodwaIIsf'-j- S . .2_‘0'. T

- Parks and Recreations Areas . -

'. ‘ usmg the stralght lrne method over the followrng useful hves

200




| TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND ,
" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2022 L

| .“‘T'TNOTE 15 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (contmned)

i ‘,.-'-.'Due To/From Other Funds

L .“Due from other funds are consrdered avallable spendable resources”: The amolmt due : oo
L to. the General Fund represents expendrtures pald by the General Fund on behalf of the. SR
L Proprtetary Funds : R S TP B

| :ﬁ_' 'Interfund-Balances- S

'On the fund ﬁnanc1al statements rece1vables and payables resultmg from short term-‘_-'
. interfund loans are classified s’ “interfund: recervables/payables ’ - These amounts are .
i ":__ehmmated in the govemmental and’ busmess fype activities columns of the statemerit of it
_» met.position. - Interfund balances have no set repayment sohedule and aré- generally ot. oo
- expected to be. repald wrthrn one year. -The interfund balance as of June 30,2022 was .- B
- '$2,864,644. The entlre balance is due from the proprretary fund to the general fund The LT
e funds were used to Operate the water and sewer SYStern L = LR

e Compensated AbsenceS Sl

B Annual leave is. earned ona, calendar year basrs Any unused annual leave at December-

o319 s forfeited. thus. all  compensated absences at June-30™ are current liabilities. i,

S L'_'iEmployees are pard any unused annual leave that has not been forferted upon separatron* R
v -"_':';.of employment LT : - : : y :

;Srck leave is accrued based on length of employment The Town does not relmburse:_;-;}- R S
S -:employees for the unused accumulated smk leave upon separatron of employment '

R ‘_'Equrty ClaSSIﬁcatIOHS

.' 3 Government—W1de ﬁnancral statements - EquIty 18 clas31ﬁed as net p081t10n and d1splayed-:.' R
©oin three” components 1) Net: 1nvestment in capltal assets thls component consrsts of
capItal assets. including  restricted cap1ta1 assets, net of. accumulated deprecratlon and’ v
. reduced by the outstandlng balances of any bonds mortgages notes or other bortowings - . "
~ that are attributable to-the acquisition, conistruction, or improvements of those assets. 2) B
S Restricted net pOSItlon thls component con51sts of net position with restrlctlons placed on-
the use either by. ‘external  groups ‘such .as- credltors, grantors, contrrbutors or laws-or .. .
o freGulatIons of. other governments o1 law through constitutional provrslons or enabling. o
: < legislation. 3) Unrestrrcted net posnron this component consists of all other net posrtlon [
L that do not meet the deﬁmtlon of restucted or. net 1nvestment m cap1tal assets 5

P L S SO ST



TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“ . FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
3 NOTE I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (contInued)

e Fund FlnanCIal Statements - Govemmental ﬁmd equlty Is claSSIerd as: fund balance

].-._Governrnental Fund Flnancral Statements In the fund ﬁnanc1al statements gRE
:;g()vernmental funds report - fund ba.iances as nonspendable, restrIcted comrnltted LR

- assrgned or unaSSIgned Nonspendable - Amou:nts that' cannot be Spent because they are -

either (a) not.in spendable form or- (b) legally or. contractually requrred to be maintairied: .

o infact, Restrlcted - Amounts that can’ be spent only ‘for speorﬁc purposes because. of the SRy

, "-:_.'Town s state or. federal laws, or-externally- imposed conditions by grantors or creditors, -
"Comrmtted : Amounts that c¢an.only be used. for: specrﬁc purposes pursuant to. constramts O
' j;__Irnposed by formal action’ (passed motlon) of the govemment s highest level of deCISIon- IR

: making authority. ASSlgned Amounts that ate constralned by the governrnent s.intent to. L
- be used for SpeCIﬁc purposes; but are nelther restncted nor- comrmtted The Mayor and.._f o

- Town Councrl are. the. body  authorized to-establish: a- policy -and-assign' amounts to” = .

. ‘=speCIfic pUIposes. - UnaSSIgned —~ . All " amounts . not mc]uded in -other spendable,_,-"_ T
e f_olaSSIfIcatIons Proprletary fund equIty 1s claSSIﬁed the same as in. the government-WIde L ST
*::,-""f':statements ' T L T T T R

i ;‘l-_j'Res-t'ncted Re'sourc':es e

o :'The Town s pohcy is to fIrSt apply restrlcted resources. for expenses mcurred Where both" ; SR
: restrloted and unrestricted - are. available. In governmental funds, the' Town $ polrcy is to,‘" B

' first apply the expenditure toward the restricted fund. ‘balance and then to other, less- - SR

R . . restrictive classifications - comrnltted and then assrgned fund balances before usmg e
_ .-:unaSSIgned fund balances : , ‘ B '

S _V:'Operatmg Revenues a.nd Expenses '

':Operatmg revenues a:re those revenues. that are generated d1rect1y from the pnmary o

B ‘actIVIty of the proprletary funds. For the Town, these revenues are for’ services (water, i L

e ~sewer -and. garbage) prov1ded by the. Proprletary Fund to the general pubhe Operatmg

R expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the. service that is the primary-activity of -~ B
- the fund.. Revenues and expenses not' meetlng thIS deﬁnltlon are reported as.mon- o

o o operatmg

Estl'mates R

p 'Management uses estrmates and assurnptlons in preparmg fInanCIal Statements inc
“.accordance with aceountlng pnnCIples generally accepted in the United States - of

' -,Arnerlca -Those estimates and assumptlons affect the reported amounts ‘of assets and SRR
liabilities; deferred inflows of resources, the disclosure of contingent assets and lIabllltIes-_ij e
“and the reported Tevenues, expendltures and expenses Actual results could vary from the :_ P

o _-:_.,estImates that were used
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e ""‘: lDeposrt Pol1cy

TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

- -NOTE 2 PROPERTY TAX
‘_The Town property taxes are. 1ev1ed eaeh July 1 on the assessed valuatrons estabhshed by o
- the State ‘Property ‘taxes are due on July 1 and’ become dehnquent after OCtober Tand
+ attach as dn- enforcea’ole lien on the property -All taxes not paid . are in arrears “after the AR
o last day of March and :are turned over to, the official of Allegany County for the sale.of -
o %delmquent property “The real estate tax rate assessed for the year ended June 30, 202210
- finance general government: services was §$. 60 ‘per $100° of assessed. valuation. - The:. - . R
L _personal property tax rate for the year ended June 30 2022 was $ 15 per $100 of assessed_j e s
Valuatlon L . o : A . RO

R 'NOTEB CASH AND INVESTMENTS "

o Statues authonze the Town to 1nvest in: certrﬁcates of deposrt repurchase agreements g OV

- passbooks banker S acceptance -and other avarlable bank 1nvestments prov:lded that l_ ':.:"'rj." C
L 'approved securrtles are pledged to secure those funds. deposrted in an amount equal to the LAl
L ‘amount of those. funds, Tn addition, the Town can invest in direct debt securities of the IR
DR Umted States of Arnerrca unless Such an 1nvcstment is expressly proh1b1ted by law ‘

o '.,.‘-Deposrts

e Custodlal credlt rrsk for deposrts is the r1sk that in the event of a bank farlure the Town s i
: "-_deposrts may not be returned ot the Town will not be-able to récover “collateral securities RRE AT SRR
<« inthe possessron of an-outside’ party The Town’s polrey Tequires- deposrts tobe 1nsured Coil
by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporatlon (FDIC) and balances. exceeding Fpic llmlts be
S osecured by collateral Collateral is to be held by the Town, its, agent or- by. the pledgrng'-'}, gl
Cen ﬁnancral 1nst1tutron s trust department or agerrt in the name of the Town : L

SR _-At June 30 2022 the carrymg amount of the Towr1 " depos1ts WAS $1 276 621 and the ST
i ‘bank balance was $1;222,171 . Of the bank balances, $851,628 was insured:by FDIC and - ER R
1 -$370,543 was secured. by collateral. - Restricted cash in. the amount of $59,889 at June oo
R 30 2022 consrsted of bay restoratlon fees collected and payable to the State of Maryland S

P

B tInvestrnents

_Credrt rrsk is the r1sk that an issuer or other counterparty to an mvestment wﬂl hot fulﬁll ks
its obl1gatlons The ‘Town’s pohcy is’ 10 invest- in securities’ backed by the federal
_ .government. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affeet'f T
o the fair 'value of an investment. Investments held for’ longer perlods are ‘subject o =
- - increase risk of’ adverse mterest rate changes “The: Town s policy is to limit its 1nterest'g': -
rate rrsk by pr1marrly 1nvest1ng in govemment securrtres Concentratlon of credlt rlsk s '




TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR E\IDED JUNE 3() 2022

e NOTE 3~ CASH AND INVESTMENTS (contmued)

g the nsk that loss attrlbuted to the magmtude of the Town S 1nvestments in'a smgle user.

Pt '7The Town 5. hmrts it concentrat1on I‘lSk by 1nvest1ng 1n .Umted States Treasury S -" L

S 1nst:ruments '

The Town categonzes its. faJr value measurements wrthm the fa1r value h1erarchyf": Lo
o _'estabhshed by generally accepted accountlng pnnclples The h1erarchy 18- based on- the'-- S
e Valuat1on inputs: used to measure the fair' value. of the asset “Level 1 mputs are’ CIUOted

“prices in active markets for- identical assets; Level 2 ‘inpufs_ are s1gmﬁcant other TS

= 'observable 1nputs Level 3 1nputs are. s1gn1ﬁcant other unobservable 1nputs

ff_"fThe Town has the followmg recurrmg fa1r Value measurements as of June 30 2022 '_‘ S _
“:Fixed income securities in the amount of $47,566. In add1t1on the 1nvestments mclude:_ Do s

. _cash of $90 796 The cash balance ‘was 1nsured by the FDIC

4 NOTE4 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

el The Town s accounts recewable at June 30 2022 con31sted Of

Busmiw type
L Actnntles

L _5_ 173 530, 1 " 178, 53077;
_‘. 3 134 373;15 178 530 _, S 313408

The Town records reﬂect past due unhty bﬂhngs from the Upper Potomac R1ver
- Commission. - The past-due brllmgs total $58,525 however $57 685 has been esttmated to S

L be uncollectlble The net amount due from Upper Potomac Rlver Comm1ss1on is $840

gt ’f'_:‘The Town has computed an allowance for doubtful accounts for charge for serv1ces-. R

. accounts receivable based on historical mformatlon The allowance for doubtful accounts Lo

at June 30,2022 was $19,837.

e -.'.;At June 30 2022 deferred mﬂows of resources fcr unavarlable revenue reported in the. SR

T :,general fund vias $84,331.




CTOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND S
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Lo
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022 EREEE IR

TOtB* Cﬂpltal Assets net R

June 30 2022

| ‘("._NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental Activities .

'Ju}ie 30, 2021

3 The followmg is; a summary of the changes m ﬁxed assct accounts for the year ended'

Balance

,;,.

: Capital Assets nbf:dé_'préciate'q_{: T

| Addiions - Dispositions ‘ June 30, 2022

. }88r057 i

91067 17

160,106 |

15819657

627,695 |

"‘705- 273 " :
160 106

3,321,197 |

157 123

3, 478 3257

1698520"‘%:-‘ =

33 939

1,732,459 .

P Total Accumulated Deprec:atlon

: Busme55 ACt!VItlES Capital Assets ,net

L7008 |

) 72,459_

18024920

39,520,604 |
304,650 |

304,680

' 140 003 071,

- 304697

104,043

1,693

069
209,791
14,459,852 |

. 41,896,508 7

© 306,320

14,008,245 " | -

1,008, 78’7'

15,017,092 |

26,000,312

" gga, sso

26,884, 952

957 109

28, 687 454 o

8 2n730385 |

s




.'NOTE 7 LONG TERM DEBT

TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
"FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30 2022

"fﬁbNorsé NOTESRECEVABLE"T**'T

: ";'Notes recetvable in’ the proprletary tund of $218 889 ity recewable from the Allegany o

" County- Commlsstoners for one half.of the Water Treatment Plant Rehabilitation Toan that -~~~ |

W - originated in 1992,  The note recetvable lnterest rate. Varles WIth the General Obhgatton B
o Refundtns: Bonds Sertes 2015 : 25 - S '

e Long—term debt m the governrnental funds consrsts of the followrng

’ :Note payable due to Maryland Appalachtan Housmg F und Orlgtnal Ioan Was in’ the_.'_"':_ _.“-.' .

- amount of $177,895in 1985:to finance site preparation: costs for Meran Manor Nursmg;_
" Home and’ Seniot Housrng PI‘OJeCt "The loan; is “interest’ free and - requlres payments; oo
e _annually in the amount-of $7,412 begmmng June'1, 1995. The balance at June 30,2022 "

_,was $14, 825.° The nofe - matures - in’ July 2022 The loan is unseeured The debt_"-
O :requu‘ement for the subsequent year 1s $14 825 I e e g e

| "'..‘-Note payable to Ftrst Umted Bank & Trust - Ortgtnal Ioan in the amount of $48 000 for e

“the’ purchase of a truck. “Theé ‘note, ll'lCludlIl" annual” interest of 4. 48%," is repald ST o
RN 'Inonthly payments. of 31, 427, The note maturés December 2022 The balance at June 30, - °

-_“ 2022 was $6 936. The note is seeured by a truck The debt requrrements for the-f{i e
'--'__"subsequent year 1s $6 936 . e e T : . L

o lI”--Note payable to Flrst Unlted Bank & Trust Orrgtnal loan in the amount of $250 OOG for._f":__ SRR

. the purohase of real estate with. nnprovements “The note; 1nelud1ng interest of 2.62%, s -

" 1épaid in 59 monthly paymients of $2,374 and ‘one frregular payment of estimated at | - o
" $135, 642 The note matures-July 29, 2026 ‘The note s secured by the- reai estate and -~ . e

o ~improvements.. - Thé ‘unpaid "balance ‘at- June 30, 2022 was’ $229 741 The ld,e:bt_'”-" .

Ve .requlrements for the subsequent year is $22 21 8

& ._-':."__Long terrn debt in the proprletary funds consrst of the followrno

o Note Payable to State of Maryland Ortginal note of $500 000 was. used t0 ﬁnance the_ L

Route 135 sewer: prOJect The note, including anaual interest of 1 2% is. repatd in- annual i ilj :
"'payments of $31 014, The note: matured February 2022 o - R

o f"-Note Payable to. Untted States Department of Agrlculture (USDA) The orlcunal note of i | , o

- $130,000 was -used. t6 upgrade the filter: plant. ~ The 40 year loan, requrres quarterly‘, '
- payments' of $1,485 commencing on ‘Septernber 29, 2012, “The annual interest rate is.

”ﬁm%mwmmmmmmmmmTmmmemﬂﬁfﬂw“

2052, ‘The loan- is secured by the water ﬁlter pIant The debt requrrement for the-'i.f e

o subsequent year is $2 020.~

: 9. :




TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2022

“NOTE 7 LONG TERM DEBT (contmued)

"Bond Payable to Umted States Department of Agrlculture (USDA) The erlgmal bondi-: SRR

-+ of $600, 000 was used. to improve the. water system ‘Annual interest in the amount of -

j".$12 000 -was' due on-August 28 2018 and 2019 Thereafter the 40: year. bond requrres;-,f : o
L quarterly payments of $5, 656 commencmg on November 28,2019, The annual interest
" rate 18 2%. “The balance at ] une 30, 2022 was $570,100. ‘The note matures on August 28, e t

'. "2057 The loan is secured by the water system The debt requirement for the subsequent e

g _B’ear is $1] 261

,:‘Note Payable to Maryland Department ot Envrronrnent The ongmal néte of $833 750; R

| "was 10 upgrade the: water distribution system and water’ meters “The 30 year ] -loan requires . s Sl
. an annual payment of $32,289 commencing on February 1, 2015, The balance at-June oo '

30,2022 was. $606, 548 The annual interest: rate 15 .8%. The note matures on. February I,

-~ i 2043. . The loan is secured by the water distribution system and water mieters.” The: foan. © ..
e -["-balanee does" not” 1nclude loan- forgweness in. the ;amount . of $1,047.079" that the 0T

. Administration may ‘demand full repayment if the Town does not fullly. comply per the SRS
o -".'loan agreement The debt requtirement for the subsequent year rs $27 314 = 0

; H..{.'Note Payable to Maryland Department of Env1ronment The ongmal note of $812 OOO‘ R
. ".was to upgrade the Water. Drstnbutron Systen. , The 30 yearloan requires an: annual i L

;payment of $32, 395 commenemg February 1, 2015, The annual interest rate is.1%. The e

IR balance at June 30, 2022 was $636,893. The: note matures on February 1,2044. The loan L &

o is'secured. by the water d1str1but1on system The debt requ1rement for the subsequent year\,-_. co
‘ ?--‘_._‘__-'15 $25 028 R T e . L . :

'Note Payable 1o Maryland Department ot Envrronment - The 0r1g1nal note of $l 394 000‘_‘ s R
SRR was o upgrade the Water Distribution System “The 30 year loan: requ1res an.- annual,-":ﬂ--. o : e
" payment of $43,320; The arinual interest rate-is 0.6%, The balance at June 30; 2022 was

o - $1,302,166.. ‘The note matures’ on’ February 1, 2046. - “The loan is secured by the water
. 'chstrlbunon plant The debt requrrement for the subsequent year is $53 203 Ll

S -General Obligauon Refundmg Bonds Senes 2015 - Durrng the ﬁscar year ended June. e

L 30, 2015 ‘the” Town issued Bonds ' in the aggregate “principal amount of $4,340;000. - e

SNy Proeeeds of the bonds were: used f01 redeemrng certain outstandmg debt obl1gat1ons of ,' "
ER ‘the Town, paylng the costs of issuing the bonds.and paying ‘the premium for mumctpal SRR

- .bond insurance. The bonds are general obltgauons of the Town, to. which full faith and - e
 credit and unl1m1ted taXmg power of the Town are pledged for payment. It is anticipated -

: "“'that the debt service on'the. Bonds will be patd frorn the fees and rates collected. from the B

Town’s water product10n and sewer facilities. © The Town completed the refundlng to e

" reduce its total debt payments over the next 30 years by $260; 900 and to obtainan - -

o Jeconomic’ gam (dlfterence between: the present values of the old- and' new debt payment) e :-: s
“ of. $223,951. :The balance:at June 30, 2022 was $3 740.000. The unamort1zed bond; -

- premtum was $lO7‘ 165 at June 30 2022 The bond premrum arnortrzauon for the




TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND
NOTES TO. THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
-E OR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30 2022

NOTE 7 LONG TERM DEBT (contmued)

subsequent year 1s $4 660 The matur1t1es amounts mterest rates and y161ds are as L
follows : - : : o 2R, _ , i

" Matru:ty Date R :P"r'incigal RN
The flrstof December ' Amounts Interest Rates / Yleld RS
g022 4 Too000 2 375 241
2023 L L100000 L 2s 259
'--;"2024.1 105,000 2.5_2_.5',' R TA
2030 705,000 4 SUSHE b= SO
L2082 275000 oo AL U333
2035 T As5,0000 SUURE L
2045'. T 2,00, ooo.:—,_? L 372 R

A Total 1nterest expense for the ﬁscal year was $175 436

o "The summary of changes m long term debt are summanzed as follows:"_ :

TR Ba"lé'nce R s Balance =
- i'-_"..'_'Jun'e'.SO; 2021 +Additions: . Reduttions. . June 30 2022

s Governrnentai Act! umes

o Maryland Appalachlan Housmg Fund G CLg. i4Ras e AR s "-"1:4,-_8__2_5' _
RSt United Bank&Trust Lot T 33870 TS 280, ooo s (36,783) 7. - D 23e67r
T s _Total Gove,[nmenta‘l Act:wtles_. Sl L o 38,2957 zsu 000 ;‘_'(36. 7{93)'“:'_%'»‘ ';'251;502- '

.BusmecstypeActlwtles . ST i Co e T o e el e

- Maryland Department of Enwronment e 2 633,646 .. ey ".(‘27,10[;i)2_‘" S o 605,546 .

7 : Maryland Department of En\nronment "3: E o &62,611 N RIS '('25.,?18}_” '.:‘_7- 636,893 .

.'--Unlted States: Departmentongncuiture B . '1'12,20_4_. (2180} Ce 110024

o .Unlted State's Department of Agrlculture - 581,.1_{\13-_ R ; ?-in,qaz) R :.."‘.'570,]..6'1.‘-' _
Lol General Obligation Ref‘u"rs'ding Bonds, Senes W15, L 380,000 :._"-(1.00,0'00)" SU 3za0000.
( S R . . Premitam o Generaf Obllgatlon Refundmg Bonds s 7.11_1,8'24: _‘—?i e . i '(45'5'3) ) 107’155 N e

B "Maryfand Department of Enwronment Rt, 135 Sewerl’ e _--':‘29!1-77 T (29 177)

' ;«_Marviand Department of EnwronmentPhase T I 7. 1= R S(5.000) T - o 1,302,165
“Total Busmess “type acnwnes el _'l SRR Y o % oo BN (204875) T .7',072,395:3'__- Lo
;- iTotal, Long term Debt L N - 57316065 S .250;000 5(241 658) . 7324397 o
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TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND
a3 \IOTES TO THE" FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 7 LONG TERM DEBT (contlnued)

The debt requlrements are L

: Fi'scal Yeal" e G'O\kerh'mént'a.i Busmess Type '. SREEPIRE

EﬂdEd “Principal 3 Prmcupal {nterést LTotal _
_ 2023_ AR PR -7/ S S T3 826 178790 - 437 595"
2028 UL L 3'05*_.}.; ‘_-"_2;9_,_0957'_-."-_-‘,“ 167,964 . 410,865 -

: ‘_f:-;t}'_zS‘_ G230 T gyt L asagee L ;'435505-2'_-:1"_ PR

2026 - o3e3 T mare o wnesr o mmes
o o Cwers L iassssoiman . aasmy oL
1,339,576 50 L 655,630 ‘-;‘-";-1995206-:_‘-,:;”- Tt

$ .‘251'50'2'!4}':‘52 C 5965729 .S:':"Z,'85.6,2_80 s 10, 073 511--.‘_"'- ;

PR 'NOTE 8- PENSION PLAN

R jOn Aprli 8 1973 the May01 and Towrl Commlssmnets approved and admlnlsters af_' RN
L single- employer -unfunded: defined: benefit ‘pension” plan for retired employees with a =~ . ¢

- minimum twenty. years. of service on their- biXt}’~SGCOHd birthdate. The plan‘is closed to- . S
.- new-entrants. Full: ‘pension is. calculated as. follows: 30, years or. more of" service.— -0
S monthly benefit is $650; 25 ~ 20 years = monthly beneﬁt is $60{) and 20 24 years of_ R
o 'serv1ce monthly beneﬁt is $550 _ TR o N

‘:_::_'Three retlred emp]oyees were pald beneﬁts totahng $16 997 for the ﬁscal year ended SN
L June 30, 2022. - Two retired employees were paid benefits. totahng, $13,750 duiring: the'-]"*'&_" e
- fiscal year ended June' 30,2021, Two retired” employees were ‘paid benefits totaling .~ - ..
S '$12,600 for the ﬁscal year ended June 30, 2020; two retired employees were paid benefits ©
.. ‘totaling $13, 200 for the fiscal year ended June 30,:2019; " five retired employees were .
“ . “paid benefits totahng $24,100- for the- fiscal  year ended Juneé. 30 2018; six retired EENCS
" . employees were paid benefits'totaling $35,250-for. the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017; . .. - ¢
~'$40,200 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016;-$40,200 for the fiscal year ended Juné: - -
. .'30 2015; $40, 200 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014;:$40,200 for the fiscal year
- ‘ended June 30, 2013;'$ 39,100 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012; $36,800 for the . -
 fiscal year ended June 30; 2011 and $33,000. for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 The . .-
“Town does not fund ‘the pension 11ab111ty and funds the pension beneﬁts under this plan-~
* monthly. as they become: due. ‘There are no assets accumulated in @ trust that meets the -
. criteria:in paragraph 4. of GASB Staternent ‘No. 73, The pensmn ‘expense. recognized . =
o+ during the fiscal yedr was $17 219 The requlred beneﬁt payments for June 30 2023 areﬁ_'f--.‘.}l R
. '-'Vi-estlmatedto be $19 800 LT el

b T T e 1 394961-‘;-"5”- 560,0847 . 1,055, 005-"}}\7'_.»; v
S igesraa0m, s 697,678 | 4541955 " ' .4_"-1. 153,633
L ooa0a2046 oo URT L gagsonyt  a73ge2 2659769 -
o047 2051'-'.;", ST quagma o mgne sy
2052 2057,". S R e i 123,481 o oagsa L 1ag3isii




TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND
NOTES TO THEF INANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2022

L __NOTE 8 PENSION PLAN (contrnued)

The Town has obtarned an actuanal valuatlon of 1ts penswn plan on July 1, 2021 The"i’ SR

~-annual covered payroll was $150,391: - The estimated unfunded pension’ obhgatlon at
. June 30, 2022 is $372,181. The unfunded pension obhgatron decreased by $10 397 from..

. . the prior-year balance of $382 578. There are no-assets accumulated in a trust topay .o

" related benefits. The ‘mortality assurnptrons are based on the RP 2000 rnortahty table, - o

SR _gender specific, fully generatlonal ‘with prOJectron scale AA: The expenence stuches on__ o
whleh s1gmﬁcant assumptlons are based are dated July 1 2021 ERRIERRTRS S

SRR -The d1scount rate applled in the measurement of the collectlve total pensmn hab111ty is B o
e 5 5%, based on the 20 year general obhgatmn bond rates over the l1fe of the plan L

o The: number of 1nact1ve employees currently rece1v1ng beneﬁts is 3 and actlve employees_.; f.:".:' .
‘ ,',-_-‘-,el1g1ble not recelvmg beneﬁts is 3 : S FRE L

o ;:"'.NOTE 9 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

r"""On January 1 2004 the Town estabhshed a deferred compensat1on plan 1n accordance’il"

S with Internal Revenue Code Sect1on 457 This plan,’ ava11able to all employees, permits';”.“'.__' L
¥ them to defer a portion of then' wages: unt1l future ‘yéars: The Town contributes to the e
PR ‘plan for those employees: that opt to part1crpate The deﬁned contrlbutlon planis serviced . " . R P

SRR -fthrough Variable “Aniity Life’ Insurance Company ‘In'. compllance w1th Internal_' PR S

- Revenue Code Section 457(g), all assets and income of the plan is held in trust for the - ¢

- - exclusive. benefit of partlctpants and their beneficiaries. Accordmgly, in, accordance with- S
' Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. -32, “Accountmg cand

A ::['Z'Flnanmal Reporting for the Internal Revenue ‘Code 457. Deferred Compensatlon Plan” -+ -
- the. 1nvestrnents de51gnated for compensatlon benefits are - 1ot reﬂected in the Town’s ~- .

o ; :ﬁnancral staternents, The Town made* contr1but1ons of '$3,700. and employeesf" (R
o '.contnbuted $4, 740 to- the deferred compensatron plan for the year, endlng Juné 30,2022, e
- -'No contnbutron reqmrements are set forth in the plan for the employer or employees CNEE




TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND B Tt
_  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e ‘f ESRT
- FORTHE YEAR ENDED ) JUNE 30,2022 |

pet ",‘_NOTE 10 RISK OF LOSS

' '-‘,The Town 18, exposed to rtsks of loss trom lawsu1ts medlcal 1nsurance cla1ms worker S

- compensation claims- and property damage clarms Rlsks of 'loss from: laWSUItS arg " -7 :
- retained by the Town.: Rrsks of 1085 from medical and property damage cla1ms have been -~ -

) transferred to. the’ Townls: insurance -cairier through ‘the: purchase of get. premrum_-.__‘_-':_"-'g.,zjr_' __
~ -insurance.. The risk 6f loss for worker S compensatton “clatms “is’ insured under - <.
: retrospectrvely rated polrcy ‘Premiums are ‘based on' the ultlmate cost of the experience .~~~ o -

-+ to date'of the Town ‘No additionat amounts were fequired to be. accrued-at June 30; 2022‘_..11 R S
S to reﬂect the amount requrred for-the year then ended. . The. Town has opted not t0L |
' "',contr1bute 10 the- Maryland Unemployment Insurance Fund on’a: quarterly basis. ‘' The ..~ =
il Town rermburses the :Maryland. Unemployment Insurance Fund for- dnemployment_._" SR
;,."','.3._.__:beneﬁts pald on behalf of the Town The Town depends economrcally on property and“-;'
- :ﬁ_f‘-‘lncome taxes ST R A TR B A

- i,"NOTE 11~ RESTRICTED NET POSITION

B ?"‘At June 30 2022 the Town had restncted net posrtlon totallng $l92 529 1n the_‘_:‘-,f...-'. o

. :5__g0ver1nnental act1v1t1es and $59 889 in the pr0pnetary fund

""'?‘Funds from Columbra Gas are restrrcted for street paving in the amount of $170 057

_'_"Funds e the amount of $11, 994 -are restricted” for- the. fire department Funds n the'g.' B T TR
o - ;arnount of $10 478 are restrrcted to use fer el1g1ble actrvmes as stlpulated by the Cares: SR

_7 The restrreted funds in the propnetary tund cons1st of Bay Restoratron fees due to the_ S -
-._State ofMaryland S - - - D

L '.NOTE12 BUDGET VARIANCE

i "',“'The actual revenue for the General Fund wis_ mere than the budgeted revenue by
7 $996,386, The fayorable" variance .is prlmanly attributed to grant funds-that “were not SRt

._.,'f-:budgeted The budgeted expendrtures were  less than the actual expendltures by
_1$626 329 The overall favorable varrance was $370 05 EERPET : :

o .,..:_;NOTE 13 DEFICIT IN UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION

ke 'The busmess type act1v1t1es have a deﬁcrt in the unrestncted net posrnon The overall net'- s

".-__pos1t1on for the busrness type act1v1t1es and the Town overall s favorable




AR TOWN OF WESTERNPORT MARYLAND R
(;,;l.« STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES fN FUND BALANC"'
BUDGETAND ACTUAL(BUDGET BASIS) SRR S
~GENERALFUND ] e
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2022

\ Onglnai e T e
Revenues S L S L e ST SN
0 Takes - T TR P N J'.?: fs -441 520 % _' '491 2'73,_ ' S 49 758 i B
. " Licenses and Permlts LT e g, 140 40690 37550
L lntergovernmental B O P _140 600 < 959 600 81__9,000, :
O _Interest TR R T 4080"_' G 4,080

TomlRevenues LS T gongsy Camsan meme

S .j,fEXpenditures S e e B T e T T e e g e
. General Government e T 160,663 181,009 0 11366
-7 Publie Safety, - ol e R Lo et s000 (5,000) ]

~public Works S T e 369663 230076 L 137,587
L1 Debt Service. it ST 175 606 a3y 131,883 | i
- Recreation and. Culture I R BRI 1438 (1 438)' S
.7 Miscellaneous Co 78908 TasIs e agie
"Capatal Outlay R T ] 10,000 Cho209887 .(219 587) S

o verses o 34 489 o

.Ipta_,l._Expepditur'e's_f-=_. e

| Bessof Revenueover Expendianes L s g
.""3;'.'40ther Fmancmg Sources (Uses)

o Transfers AR T s (660 818) = _;_::‘_'-:(660 818):’_,;
o Loan Proceeds B T SIS I L 250000 L -'250 000,--”--;:

TotaIOther FmancmgSources(Uses} Ty (410 818) ,,_.2(4\10,31_3)‘_' iy

-~ NetChangein Fund Balance T 37‘0;05_.'7f s 3j00s7

o VFu_n'dLB'éI'a.nlcgs,ﬁ July.1, 2021 - L _2'7’915‘5_;442_' e 2 915 442“.'_.."17- R

© . Fund Balances, fune'30,2022 <0 g -.2;9'1-5','442 S 3285499
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T - Town of Westernport' .* " SRR
" Westernport, Maryland -~ ©

. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING ANDON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN - - *

* . ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS e

1 have audited; in.accordance with the ‘auditing standards generally accepted in-the United States of - el

- Amnerica- and ‘the. standards ‘applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing -

Stondards issued. by the Compiroller General of the-United State, the fnancil statemerts of the ~
-‘go‘\{et_n_mehté_l_..facét_ivi_i_ties’,_.busin_e‘srs-‘tvpé"’E.“ijji;"ities',l-eaqhimé‘jqr-fund: and the aggregate remaining fund - IR

" information of the Town of. Westernport, Maryland, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the .

. related notes to ‘the financial statements, which collectively comprise the' Town' of Westernport, = © .

" Maryland's basic financial statements and have issued my raport thereon dated February 9, 2023.

' Report on Intérnal Control Over Financial Reporting .

0 planring and performing my auit of the inancialstatements, | considered the Town of Westernport,

' “..Maryland’s internal control ?‘““-"fﬂ:'-fi“‘a‘““ia'*.rep-;s‘_r'fmg'-!(inferqag. Eontrol) as a basis for desighing audit o
" procadures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my-opinions on the -~ .

. fnancial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town
©.of Westernport, Maryland's internal” control. Accordingly, 1 do not ‘express’ an-apinion on ‘the .. . 1

. effectiveness of the Town of Westernport, Maryland's internal control: |-

- . A deficiency in internal .control exists when the design or operation of a control does not afiow = S
. management oremployees; in the normal course of performing their assigried functions, to prevent,or . |
. detect and cotrect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, ora- -
. combination of deficencies, i internal control such that there Is  reasonable possitilty that s matorial

o misstatement of the entity’s. financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and correctédona” @

- timely basis. A significant deficiency-is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiericies, in internal control -~
. that is less.severe than a material weakness, ye_t.jm'portant;-e_ngugh to mi erit attention by those charge a0

_ My consideration’ 6f'\intéfr’1aﬂl_"¢o'r{tfdl‘ was for 'th_e':l’i_mitéd' pu'rhcjse 'déscr'ibed. in th_e first Paragfabﬁ_-of this. ~

- section and was not designed to-identify all deficiencies in interhal control that might by. material:

- weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may

o "exist_that'Wére'not id_entifiéd.:“'G'i\)en these limitations, during my audit I did not identify a:hy_, deficiencies - -

i internal control that | consider to be material weaknesses. " I'did identify a certain deficiency .in -
iy Ainternal control that | consider to be a significant deficiency as’ follows: The absencé of appropriate
- segregation of duties consistent with appropriate control objectives: . The size of the Town does not

" American Institute of CPAs - Maryland Association of CPAs .




b : Town of Westernport, Maryland’s Response to Fmdmgs -

{Purpose of thas Report -

'-"'.Oa and IVID
' "'February9 2023 R

: allow for the segregatlon of dutles causmg a deﬁuency in the lnternal controi de5|gn The Iack ofwr T i
RN segregatlon of dUtIES cou!d adversely affect the Town’s ab:llty to record process summanze and report Ve '
" financial data.consistent. with the assertions of management in the financial statements The mternal L

fcontrol system should be rewewed to determsne |f dut:es could be segregated DR

o ’"_{':_,Report on Compllance and Other Matters

‘ "*"-As part of obtalmng reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Westernport Maryland’

" financial statements are free of material m|sstatement 1 performed tests of its compliance with certaln;{ B
o ';prowsmns of iaws regulatlons contracts and grant agreements ‘nencompliance with Wthh could have T

i adirect and materlai effect on-the- fmanc:al statements _However; prowdmg an oplmon on compl;ance i L

! 'wn:h those provrsmns was not an. ObJECtIVE.‘ ‘of my audlt -and accordmgly, Ido: not. ‘express “such an .t
" . opinion. " The results of my tests. disclosed ho instances of noncompirance or other matters. that are.
?_:f_'.requrred to be reported under GovernmentAud:tmg Standards o ‘ U L

Do _.The Town WI|| re\flew the mternai controfs and determlne if. dutles can be segregated Govemment =
Rty Audrtmg Standards requures the audltor 10 perform Ilmlted procedures on the Town of. Westernport R :
~ Maryland’s. response to.‘the’ flndmg identified ‘in -my" audit and- ‘described :above. ~The Town. of . R
Westernport Maryland’s response was not subjected to the other audltlng procedures applled |n the.' S
audlt of fmancra! statements and accordmgly, 1 express no opmmn of the response S B

The purpose of th|s report is so!ely to descrlbe the scope of my testlng of mternai control andt‘i:i
o "compllance and the results of that. testlng, and not to prowde -an opinion on the effectlveness of- the - A N
fentltys lnternal control or on compllance This report is; an mtegral part of an audit performed m",.- o -
Lo ;accordance - with- Government Audrtmg Standards Ain, consrdenng the. entity’s mternal controi and’.‘ﬁ
T "-compllance Accordlngiy, thls communlcatlon rs not swtab[e for any other purpose N

4
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